
MONDAY, April 3, 2017 
7:00 PM 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR 97103 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. REPORTS OF COUNCILORS

4. CHANGES TO AGENDA

5. PRESENTATION
(a) Alisa Dunlap of PacifiCorp Regarding the North Coast Blue Sky challenge. 
(b) Way to Wellville National Conference in Astoria, April 17-20 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR
The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered
separately. Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City
Manager by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.

(a) City Council Minutes of 3/6/2017 
(b) Resolution to Close Out 16th Street CSO Fund 184 (Finance) 
(c) Better World Books Sales Agreement (Library)  

7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS
All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council.
Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized. In
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes.

(a) Ordinance and Public Hearing - Article 3: ADUs (1st Reading) (Community Development)  
(b) Ordinance - Article 9: Procedures (2nd reading) (Community Development) 
(c) Ordinance - City Code Update: Land Use Violation (1st Reading) – (Community Development) 
(d) First Amendment to Emission Repurchase Agreement for Carbon Credit (Finance) 
(e) Resolution to set a Public Hearing Regarding Vacation of a Portion of the Alley Abutting 3115 

Harrison and the Adjacent Undeveloped Lot (Public Works) 

8. NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA)

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION
(a) ORS 192.660(2)(d) – Labor Negotiator Consultation 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630 BY 

CONTACTING JENNIFER BENOIT WITH THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE       
AT 503-325-5824 

AGENDA 
 ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL 



CITY OF ASTORIA
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

April 3, 2017 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF APRIL 3, 2017 

PRESENTATIONS 

Item 5(a): Alisa Dunlap of PacifiCorp regarding the North Coast Blue Sky challenge. 

Alisa Dunlap of PacifiCorp will discuss recent PacificPower activities and the Blue 
Sky Challenge.  

Item 5(b): Way to Wellville National Conference in Astoria, April 17-20 

Paulette McCoy and Sydney Van Dusen with Way to Wellville Clatsop County will 
discuss the Way to Wellville National Conference taking place April 17-20.   

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Item 6(a): City Council minutes of 3/6/2017 

The minutes of the City Council meeting of March 6, 2017 are enclosed for review. 
Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that Council approve these 
minutes. 

Item 6(b): Resolution to close out 16th Street CSO Fund 184 (Finance) 

ORS 294.353 provides guidance for the elimination of an unnecessary fund and 
provides for a transfer of the remaining balance to the General Fund if no other 
fund was designated at the time of creation.  An alternate designation was not 
made when Fund # 184 was created. 

The Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) - 16th Separation Fund (184) was originally 
established to account for the 16th Street separation project.  The project has been 
completed and there is $ 18,108.36 of cash left in the fund due to payment from 
ODOT of reimbursable items at final reconciliation and interest earnings during the 
course of the project.  As no other fund was designated with this fund was created, 



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\4-3-2017\agenda memo 4-3-17.doc  

a resolution is attached which transfers the resource to the General Fund per ORS 
294.353. 
 
ORS 294.463 provides guidance for the transfer of appropriations and an equal 
amount of budget resources between funds when authorized by resolution of the 
governing body. As use of the $ 18,408.36 remaining balance would be an 
appropriate use toward the debt service of CSO loans, a second resolution is 
included transferring the balance from the General Fund to the CSO Debt Service 
Fund (270). 

 
It is recommended that Council consider adopting the attached resolutions to close 
the CSO – 16th Street Fund (184) and to transfer the residual amount to CSO Debt 
Service Fund (270) 

 
 

Item 6(c): Better World Books Sales Agreement (Library)  
 
The library continuously selects items for discard. The processing of these items is 
staff and volunteer intensive.  Staff continually seeks efficient methods to 
streamline processes.  Approval of this agreement will allow for better utilization of 
staff and possibly generate revenue for the library.   

 
 
REGULAR CALENDAR 
 
Item 7(a): Ordinance and Public Hearing - Article 3: ADUs (1st Reading) (Community 

Development) 
 
This Development Code update was initiated by the Community Development 
Department in January 2016 in response to an Affordable Housing Strategy 
endorsed by the City Council in November 2015. The City Council held a special 
work session on July 18, 2016 to discuss the strategy, which is part of 
implementing a FY 14-15/15-16 Council goal. At the work session, staff presented 
background information - including accessory dwelling units - as part of a larger 
Development Code amendment to increase the supply of housing options for all 
income levels. Subsequent to the work session, staff scheduled a public hearing 
on September 27 with the Planning Commission to consider amendments to 
Article 3 – Accessory Dwelling Units. The other code amendments (Article 2 – 
Zoning Designations) were tabled until staff received further direction from Council. 
The Planning Commission scheduled a work session for October 19 and 
continued the hearing until October 25. After considering the findings of fact, and 
public testimony, the Planning Commission recommended approval to the City 
Council on October 25. The full record for the plan amendment application (A16-
02: Plan Amendment), including the findings of fact, is contained in the staff report 
from the prior Council Meeting. A public hearing was held March 20, 2017 to 
accept public testimony and continued to April 3. Staff has reviewed the testimony 
and suggested revisions to the proposed Ordinance that address Council’s 
direction. It is recommended that the City Council accept additional public 
testimony and consider holding a 1st Reading of the proposed Ordinance. 



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\4-3-2017\agenda memo 4-3-17.doc  

Item 7(b): Ordinance - Article 9: Procedures (2nd reading) (Community Development) 
 

The Development Code (Code) update was initiated by the Community 
Development Department in January 2016 in parallel with the affordable housing 
related amendments contained in A 16-02: Accessory Dwelling Units. Article 9 of 
the Development Code contains the administrative procedures for processing land 
use applications. The City Council adopted a FY 15-16 goal to streamline the 
development review process. The procedures update is in direct response to this 
goal. Article 9 was last updated in 2014 (Ordinance 14-03). A public hearing was 
held on April 26, 2016 with the Planning Commission to consider amendments to 
Article 9. After considering the findings of fact, and public testimony, the Planning 
Commission recommended approval to the City Council. A public hearing was 
held on March 20, 2017 to accept public testimony, closed the public hearing, and 
the City Council held a 1st Reading of the Ordinance. It is recommended the City 
Council hold a 2nd Reading of the Ordinance. 
 

Item 7(c): Ordinance - City Code Update: Land Use Violation (1st Reading) – 
(Community Development) 
 
In 2016, the Community Development Department administered an exterior 
alteration permit for a historic triplex at 328 Alameda. The applicant made the 
improvements to the house prior to the consent of the Historic Landmarks 
Commission. To better address these types of issues in the future the City 
Attorney has proposed adding new enforcement tools to Section 1.010 Penalties 
of the City Code to rectify violations to land use, zoning, and building in Astoria 
that have occurred prior to and after land use approval. It is recommended the City 
Council hold a 1st Reading of the Ordinance. 
 

Item 7(d): First Amendment to Emission Repurchase Agreement for Carbon Credit 
(Finance) 
 
Council approved an agreement with The Climate Trust (TCT) to purchase carbon 
credits from the City of Astoria Watershed at a fixed priced over two years. The 
base components of the agreement have been fulfilled.  TCT is interested in 
purchasing additional Emission Reduction Tons (ERTs) from the City which the 
City currently has available.  TCT and City staff, with the assistance of City 
Forester (Mike Barnes) and carbon credit consultant (David Ford) have negotiated 
an acceptable amendment to the TCT agreement dated June 4, 2015, to purchase 
17,154 additional ERTs at the price of $ 3.15 per ERT.   An amendment with the 
additional purchase amount and price has been reviewed by City Attorney Blair 
Henningsgaard and was approved by TCT Board of Directors on March 20, 2017. 

 
The additional costs associated with this transaction are transfer fees for the 
delivery of the offsets into the Buyer Registry Account at fifteen cents per offset, or 
$ 2,373.10 + $ 35 wire transfer fee.  The net revenue from the transaction is $ 
51,627 which will be placed in the Capital Improvement Fund. 

 
It is recommended that Council approve Amendment # 1 to The Climate Trust 
agreement dated June 4, 2015. 



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\4-3-2017\agenda memo 4-3-17.doc  

Item 7(e): Resolution to set a Public Hearing Regarding Vacation of a Portion of the 
Alley Abutting 3115 Harrison and the Adjacent Undeveloped Lot (Public 
Works)  

 
The City has received a request from Larry Haskell, for the vacation of a 20 X 100 
foot portion of the alley that abuts his property at 3115 Harrison (Tax Lot 
8099CA10000) and also his undeveloped lot (Tax Lot 8099CA10100) on the south 
side of the alley, Lots 6 & 7, Block 63, Port of Upper Astoria.  Mr. Haskell would like 
to obtain the square footage necessary to potentially construct a duplex on the 
property. 

 
 Upon review of the site, it was determined that there are no public utilities on or 

adjacent to the proposed vacation area and that the City would have no future 
need for this portion of the alleyway.   This vacation will help support the City’s 
effort for good right-of-way management.   

 
 Per City Code 2.290 Authority to Make an Assessment, staff has calculated the 

real market land value of properties adjacent to the property as $6.87 per square 
foot.   Staff is proposing that an assessment of $1,374.90 (10%) of the real land 
value (as has been the practice of the City in the past) to be considered for the 
vacation of this alleyway.  

 
It is recommended that the Astoria City Council consider the resolution of intent to 
hold a public hearing concerning the vacation of a portion of the alleyway adjacent 
to 3115 Harrison and the undeveloped lot south of the alleyway. 

 






































































































	Agenda 4-3-17
	7:00 PM
	5. PRESENTATION
	7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

	Agenda Memo 4-3-17
	6a DRAFT 3-6-2017 Mintues
	6b Close CSO
	6c Better World Books
	7a Article 3 ADUs
	7b Article 9
	7c City Code Update 1.010
	7d Amendment ERTs
	7e Resolution Vacation 3115



